

ဆောက်လုပ်ရေးဝန်ကြီးဌာန
လမ်းဦးစီးဌာန



လမ်းနှင့်တံတားအသုံးပြုခြင်းဆိုင်ရာ ဥပဒေ
(ဒုတိယအကြိမ်ပြင်ဆင်သည့် ဥပဒေ)

ji q i j X n f n h
v r f E S v W m t o j y K i f q k B m
Oya' (17. 6. 2014)
(' k w d t B d j y i q i b n f O y a ')
(27. 11. 2015)

**Law Relating to the Use of
Road and Bridge
(As amended up to 17.6.2014)
(The amendment Law in second time
up to 27.11.2015)**

Oya' ork'it u S'

v r f E S' W m o l y k i f q k & m O y a ' ? (1985 c E S' f y n b M
v W f a w n f O y a ' t r S f 13) t m j y n f a x m p k & S f p f o r @
j r e f n E l f a l w n f p k & v u k u f (7. 11. 1985) & u f a e W G
p w i j y X n e f c h o n f , i f O y a ' o n f w n f O y a ' t j z p q u f u f
w n & S h G s i & S h o n f a q m u f y a & O e B D n e o n f 2012
c E S' p w i f r l v O y a ' y j y X n e f c s i f s r t e u f S r s i f a r S a f
u m E S' q a v s n f & S n f j i f i & e f k y b n f i c s i f s r t m
j y i f i E k a & a q m u & G f a m v W f a w n f q i f i f v G a q a E G
t w n j y k n d (17. 6. 2014) & u f a e W G E l f a l w n f r @ u
v u f S a & x k l w n j y k x w j y e f c h o n f (27. 11. 2015)
& u f a e W G w d t B d f j y i f i b n f O y a ' u j y X n e f c h o n f

The Brief History of the Law

Law Relating to the Use of Road and Bridge (The Pyithu Hluttaw Law No. 13/1985) was initially enacted on 7th November, 1985 in the era of the Socialist Republic of the Union of Myanmar Government. Such law has been applied as the existing law. As the Ministry of Construction has carried out beginning from 2012 for amending the facts, out of the provisions contained in the original law, which are no longer commensurate with the present time, and those were discussed and approved at the various levels of Hluttaw, and then, the President of the Union signed, approved and published on 17.6.2014. The amendment Law in second time has been announced in 27.11.2015.

v r f E S W n t o l j k i f q k B n O y a'
(1985 c k p j y n b V W f a w n D y a' t r 6 f 13)

v r f E S W n t o l j k i f q k B n O y a' u k i
j i q i b n D y a'
(2014 c k p j y n f a x m p k W f a w n D y a' t r 6 f 25)
1376 c k p e, k f j y n f a u s f 5 & u f
(2014 c k p z e / 17 & u f
' k w d t B d j i q i b n f O y a'
(2015 c k p j y n f a x m p k W f a w n D y a' t r 6 f 61)
1377 c k p w e f a q m f k f v j y n f a u s f 1 & u f
(2015 c k p E k i b m r 27 & u f

Law Relating to the Use of Road and Bridge
(The Pyithu Hluttaw Law No. 13/1985)

Law Amending the Law Relating to the Use of
Road and Bidge
(The Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014)
The 5th Waning Day of Nayone, 1376 M.E.
(17th June, 2014)

The amendment Law in second time
(The Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No 61)
The 1st Waning Day of Tazaungmone, 1377 M.E
(27th November, 2015)

rnvd m

t r s p C t a M nift & m pmsı EŞn

1/	t cef (1)	t rn EŞn "gln fznfyısı f	1
2/	t cef (2)	wrn EŞn klyk Cİsn	2
3/	t cef (3)	wrn pısı f	3
4/	t cef (4)	jyp EŞn P f sn	3
5/	t cef (5)	t ax @ G	4

Contents

Sr.No.	Particular	Page
1.	Chapter (1) Title and Definition	1
2.	Chapter (2) Duties and Powers	2
3.	Chapter (3) Prohibition	3
4.	Chapter (4) Offences and Penalties	3
5.	Chapter (5) Miscellaneous	4

t cef(1)
t r n ESh "gh fznfyCSI f

- 1/ p Oya' u k r f ESh w m o k i f q k m Oya' [k c: w i G
 ap& n f
- 2/ p Oya' w i G s o mat m i f y o m & y f s o n f a z n f y g
 t w k f t " g h b u a m a p & n f -
 (u) v r f q k n f s o u q k m o e B D h e u p Oya'
 t v k s (t r e M j n p n) j i f o w f s a o m v r f
 ESh i f v r f e, e d o b m k w f r f r B ESh i f
 v r f r B D e, e d o f u k k n f
 (c) w m q k n f s o u q k m o e B D h e u p Oya'
 t v k s (t r e M j n p n) j i f o w f s a o m w m
 u k k n f
 (*) , m o k n f s o u q k m o e B D h e u p Oya'
 t v k s (t r e M j n p n) j i f o w f s a o m n o
 u k k n f
 (C) t o k i q k n f s o u q k m o e B D h e u p Oya'
 t v k s o w f s a o m v r f ESh w m i a y: w i G
 o a m o l o m k w f j c n e n f v r f j i f i o k i u k
 q k n f
 (i) t o k i k i f q k n f s o u q k m o e B D h e u
 o w f s a o m v r f ESh w m u k w p e n f e n f j i f i
 t o k i k i f u k k n f
 (p) t o k i q k n f s o u q k m o e B D h e u o w f s a
 o m v r f ESh w m u k w p e n f e n f j i f i o k i k i f
 t w G f a y; a q m & o n f i t c a M; a i G k q k n f

1/ jyn fax mfpk WawrfOya' t r w f 25^2014 t & jyi q i b n f
 2/ jyn fax mfpk WawrfOya' t r w f 25^2014 t & jyi q i b n f
 3/ jyn fax mfpk WawrfOya' t r w f 25^2014 t & jyi q i b n f

Chapter (1)

Title and Definition

1. This law shall be called the law Relating to the Use of Road and Bridge.
2. The expressions contained in this law shall have the meaning as follow:
 - (a) **Road** means a road prescribed, **[by notification]**¹, by the relevant Misistry for the purpose of this law and its boundary or highway and he boundary of such highway;
 - (b) **Bridge** means a bridge prescribed, **[by notification]**², by the relevant Ministry for the purpose of this law;
 - (c) **Vehicle** means a vehicle prescribed, **[by notification]**³, by the relevant Ministry for the purpose of this law;
 - (d) **User** means a traveler or any person who uses it in any other means on the road or bridge prescribed by the relevant Ministry for the purpose of this law;
 - (e) **Use** means the use of road and bridge prescribed by the relevant Ministry in any means;
 - (f) **Toll** means a fee paid for the use of a road or bridge prescribed by the relevant Ministry in any means;

1. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

2. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

3. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

(q) B Dmyb b n f Si o jykau ma fca;u B Dmyf
&fo u q k r o e B D n e u o w f S b n f i z G p n f
o M l w f t j c m t z G p n f u k b n f

(Z) au ma f b l q k n f Si o jykau ma f B e f B Dmyf
o u w n e f a y ; t y j c i f c b b u k b n f

t cef (2)

w n e e S h j y k e G h n

3/ o u q k r o e B D n e o n f (t r e e M n j n p n) j z i h

(u) t o jykau ma f B n f i r f e S w w m u k o w f S f
E b n f

(c) t o jykau ma f B e f e f x m o w f S E b n f

(*) t o jykau ma f B n f i G r e l p m u k o w f S f
E b n f

(C) t o jyk ay ; a q m j c i f r S i i f v G c i G y E b n f

4/ B Dmyb b n f-

(u) t o jyk u k o w f S b n f e f x m t w k f a u m a f H
& E k a t w G f w n e f B Dmy B n f

(c) t o jyk u k a u m a f e S t S y r n o t a u m a f H
j c i f r j k e f B Dmy B n f

5/ au ma f b l b n f t o jyk u k l n o r m i f o M l w f t o jyk
o k f S w f S f k m a o n e f x m t w k f a u m a f B n f

- (g) **Supervisor** means an organization prescribed by the relevant Ministry to supervise in collection of toll or other organization;
- (h) **Collector** means a person who is assigned duty by the supervisor to collect the toll.

Chapter (II)

Duties and Powers

3. The relevant Ministry may, [**by notification**]⁴:
 - (a) determine the road and bridge at which the toll shall be collected;
 - (b) determine the rate of toll which shall be collected;
 - (c) determine the category of vehicle on which the toll shall be collected;
 - (d) exempt from paying the toll.
4. The supervisor:
 - (a) shall take responsibility and supervise for the collection of toll according to stipulated rate;
 - (b) shall supervise that no person, other than the person who has the right to collect the toll, shall collect the toll.
5. The collector shall collect the toll from the driver or user according to the stipulated rate.

4. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

**t cef (3)
wnj r p c s i f**

- 6/ t o j k u k u m f e i s t S y r n b t Q u m f e i f r j k /
- 7/ a u m f e i b n f o w f s k n a o m t o j k e f x m x u f y k u m f e i f r j k /

**t cef (4)
j y p f E S j y p f P f s n**

- 8/ t o j k u k n o r m f o m l w f t o j k u a y ; a q m e f y s i f u G f Q o u f k n o e B D n e l o w f s b n e n f v r f t w k f t o j k E S H P a i G l a y ; a q m e r n f
- 9/ r n b t q k f 6 y g y X n e f c s i f u k z m f z s i f u s v G M m n f ? a z m f z s i f u s v E f e t m x k w a M m n f o m l w f t m a y ; u h D a M m n f j y p f k i S p D j c i f c e l Q (x k u l u c m f i x u f y l o m a x m n f P j z p a p ? e n f q k l s y f g a o m n f S r s q k l s y b k l o e f x u f y l o m a i Q P j z p a p ? P E S y f j z p a p c s e r n f)¹
- 10/ r n b t q k f 7 y g y X n e f c s i f u k z m f z s i f u s v G M m n f ? a z m f z s i f u s v E f e t m x k w a M m n f o m l w f t m a y ; u h D a M m n f j y p f k i S p D j c i f c e l Q (x k u l u b k x u f y l o m a x m n f P j z p a p ? e n f q k l s y f p b e f S r s q k l s y f g o e f x u f y l o m a i Q P j z p a p ? P E S y f j z p a p c s e r n f)²
- 11/ r n b t q k f 8 y g y X n e f c s i f u k z m f z s i f u s v G M m n f j y p f k i S p D j c i f c e l Q (x k u l u d w p f i x u f y l o m a x m n f P j z p a p ? e n f q k l s y f g a o m n f S r s q k l s y f p b e f x u f y l o m a i Q P j z p a p ? P E S y f j z p a p c s e r n f)³

1/ j y n f a x m p k w a w r f Q y a t r e f 25 ^ 2014 t & j i q i b n f
 2/ j y n f a x m p k w a w r f Q y a t r e f 25 ^ 2014 t & j i q i b n f
 3/ j y n f a x m p k w a w r f Q y a t r e f 25 ^ 2014 t & j i q i b n f

Chapter (III)
Prohibition

6. No person other than the person who has the right to collect the toll, shall collect the toll.
7. The collector shall not collect more than the stipulated rate of toll.

Chapter (IV)
Offences and Penalties

8. If the driver or user fails to pay the toll, the toll and fine shall be recovered according to the manner stipulated by the relevant Ministry.
9. Any person who violates or attempts to violates the provisions contained in section 6 or abets in commission of such offences shall, on conviction, be punished with imprisonment for **[a term not exceeding six months or with fine which may extend from a minimum of fifty thousand kyats to a maximum of three hundred thousand kyats or with both]**⁵.
10. Any person who violates or attempts to violate the provisions contained in section 7 or abets in commission of such offences shall, on conviction, be punished with imprisonment **[for a term not exceeding three months or with fine which may extend from a minimum of one hundred thousand kyats to a maximum of five hundred thousand kyats or with both.]**⁶
11. Any person who violates or attempts to violate the provisions contained in section 8 or abets in commission of such offences shall, on conviction, be punished with imprisonment **[for a term not exceeding one month or with fine which may extend from a minimum of fifty thousand kyats to a maximum of one hundred thousand kyats or with both.]**⁷

5. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

6. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

7. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

t cef (5)

t ax ~~ax~~ G

12/ t o ~~lyk~~ Eefx m r sr? P ai G sr? pf ES? pf P f sr u kl
t r ~~srjn~~ b b ~~ES~~ p & fo u q k ~~B~~ n o e B D x au aq m ~~G~~ f
& n f

13/ (p Oya' ygy Xne fcs i f sr u kl au mif x n faz n h
aq m ~~G~~ B n w G f-

(u) aq m i f ~~lyk~~ & o e B D x au n f v kl y ao n an f
Oya' r sr? p n fr ~~G~~ ES p n fu r fr sr u ~~lyk~~ n ax mif
pk t p k z ~~ES~~ o ab n w h D s i z i f x k w j y e f
E k b n f

(c) aq m i f ~~lyk~~ & o e B D x au n f v kl y ao n h r e l y
a l m n j n p n t r e l y n ~~ES~~ m n c s i E s v l y k kl
v l y n fr sr u kl k w j y e E k b n f

(*) (v r ~~ES~~ D x m) o n f v kl y ao n h r e l y n ~~ES~~ m n c s i f
r sr u kl k w j y e E k b n f)¹

14/ The Tolls Act, 1851 u ~~kl~~ Oya' z i f y o d f v kl b n f

1/ jyn fax mfk wawrf Oya' t r ~~ES~~ f 25^2014 t & j i q i b n f

2/ jyn fax mfk wawrf Oya' t r ~~ES~~ f 61^2015 t & j i q i b n f

Chapter (V)
Miscellaneous

12. The relevant Ministry shall carry out for the public awareness of the rates of toll, fines, offences and penalties.
13. **[In implementing the provisions of this law:**
- (a) the Ministry of Construction may, with the approval of the Union Government, issue the necessary bye-laws, rules and regulations .**
 - (b) the Ministry of Construction may issue the necessary notifications, orders, directives and procedures;**
 - (c) the (Department of Highway)⁹ may issue the necessary orders and directives.]⁸**
14. The Tolls Act, 1851 is hereby repealed.
-

8. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 25/2014

9. Amended by the Pyidaungsu Hluttaw Law No. 61/2014